
 
 

 
 
 
All comments limited to 3 minutes, unless prior approval for additional time for good cause is obtained from the Supervisor. 
Appointment of Supervisor Pro Tem and/ or Temporary Clerk if necessary.  
 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board by contacting:  
Township Manager Frank L. Walsh, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall 
 
 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 
 

AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

TOWNSHIP BOARD – REGULAR MEETING 
October 1, 2019 6:00 pm 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 
3. ROLL CALL 
4. PRESENTATION 

A. Introduce Troy Kaminga, Assistant IT Director   
B. MSU Solar Project-Wolfgang Bauer, Associate Vice President for Administrative Services 
C. Medical Marihuana Lottery Results 
D. 2019 3rd Quarter Management Report 

 
5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS* 
6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 
7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
9. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Communications 
B. Minutes-September 17, 2019 Regular Meeting 
C. Bills 
D. Ratification of New Police Officer Appointment 

 
10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY 
11. HEARINGS (CANARY) 
12. ACTION ITEMS (PINK) 

A. 2360 Jolly Road Brownfield Plan 
 

13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS (ORCHID) 
A. Tentative Preliminary Plat #19012 (Giguere Homes) 
B. Haslett/Park Lake Road Rezoning Request 
C. Ordinance Prohibiting Cat and Dog Sales at Pet Stores  
D. Trash Receptacle Ordinance 
E. Public Comment Policies 

 
14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
16. ADJOURNMENT 



9A 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CLERK’S OFFICE  
BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 

October 1, 2019 

BOARD INFORMATION 
(BI)  























































9B 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 
 
 
 

PROPOSED DRAFT MINUTES 
 
 
 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: 
 
Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting of 
September 17, 2019 as submitted. 
 
 
 
ALTERNATE MOTION: 
 
Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the September 17, 2019 
Regular Meeting with the following amendment(s):  
[insert amendments] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
TOWNSHIP BOARD REGULAR MEETING   -9/18/19 DRAFT- 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
853-4000, Township Hall Room  
TUESDAY, September 17, 2019   6:00 pm. 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Styka, Clerk Dreyfus, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, 

Sundland, Wisinski 
 
ABSENT:   
 
STAFF: Township Manager Walsh, Director of Public Works Perry, Fire Chief Hamel, 

Police Chief Plaga, Community Planning Director Kieselbach, Information 
Technology Director Gebes, Planner Menser, Finance Director Mattison, Human 
Resources Director Marx, Parks and Land Management Coordinator Greenway, 
Parks Naturalist Dillon  

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 

Supervisor Styka called the meeting to order at 6:02 pm. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 
 

Supervisor Styka led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 

The Recording Secretary called the roll of the Board. 
  
4. PRESENTATIONS   
 

A. Deer Management Program 
 
Jane Greenway, Parks and Land Management coordinator, and Kelsey Dillon, Park Naturalist, 
provided an overview and details on the Meridian Township Parks and Recreation 2019 Deer 
Management Program that spreads across 2,300 acres of property. 
 
Board discussion: safety procedures, dawn to dusk hours, no accidents, balance of resident desires, 
efforts to track/manage Chronic Wasting Disease. 
 
5.     CITIZENS ADDDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Supervisor Styka opened public remarks at 6:17 pm. 
 
George Kass, Indian Hills Homeowners Association, 4512 Nakoma, Okemos; spoke on concerns with 
possible AirBnB rentals (Non-Agenda Item) and the Deer Management Program (Agenda Item 4A). 
 
Eric Torng, 4138 Benca Way, Okemos; spoke on the Tentative Preliminary Plat #19012 - Giguere 
Homes (Agenda Item 12E) and showed concern with rezoning three acres to PO zoning. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *9/18/19 DRAFT* 

 Page 2   
 

Sue Flowers, 2601 Elderberry Dr., Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 12E due to not 
meeting the tree buffer conditions requested. 
 
Brian Lick, 2613 Elderberry Dr., Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 12E. 
 
Lynne Page, 3912 Raleigh Dr., Okemos; spoke in opposition to Rezoning #19060 – Bennett Road 
Holding, LLC (Agenda Item 12A). 
 

Supervisor Styka closed public remarks at 6:30 pm.  
 
6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 
 
Manager Walsh reported: Michigan State solar project, meeting with MSU President Stanley, 
medical marihuana permitting lottery Sept. 23, Garden Club recognized with award, Oct. 11 
Meridian Leadership Group, AAA+ Bond Rating, CATA response to Meridian requests 
 
7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Treasurer Deschaine: 

• Sept. 16 taxes were due; 96.2% collection rate, 3.8% delinquent. 
• Sept. 4, attended Haslett Redevelopment follow-up meeting; discussed best uses. 
• Sept. 4, attended Environmental Comm meeting; local approaches for addressing Global 

Warming. 
• Sept. 5, attended Economic Development Corporation meeting; discussed Meridian Mall. 
• Sept. 13, attended Meridian Area Business Association.  
• Sept. 12, attended Michigan State Van Kamp Business Incubator opening. 

 
Trustee Opsommer: 

• New CATA services to be provided; third bus, fifth bus on Mondays during peak hours. 
 
Trustee Jackson: 

• Sept. 17, attended Lansing Economic Area Partnership meeting; discussed talent attraction 
and brain drain. 

• Commended efforts of VanCamp incubator as a lab business incubator. 
 
Clerk Dreyfus: 

• Attended Michigan Association of Municipal Clerks annual education day meeting; 
discussed 2018 Proposition 3 and its impacts on Michigan elections. 

 
Supervisor Styka: 

• Met with Granger Waste Management; discussed the importance of Meridian for Granger’s 
business. 

• Garden Club recognized from Michigan Nursery Landscaping Association for Meridian 
Safety Gardens around Township public safety buildings. 

• Announced upcoming Harris Nature Center events. 
• Oct. 12 Fire Safety event hosted my Meridian Fire Department. 
• Oct. 18 Meridian Cares Fundraiser at Old Chicago, 4 pm to 9 pm. 

 
8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *9/18/19 DRAFT* 

 Page 3   
 

 
Supervisor Style requested the Board take up for action a resolution supporting the national appeal 
of the FCC August 2 as Agenda Item 12I. 
 
Supervisor Styka requested the Board discuss a resolution supporting the repeal of the United 
States’ economic embargo against the Republic of Cuba as Agenda Item 13D, and to postpone 
Agenda Item 12E to a later meeting. 
 
Supervisor Styka requested Agenda Item 12E be postponed to a later meeting. 
 
Trustee Opsommer requested the Board discuss the possible regulation of AirBnB rentals under a 
new Agenda Item 13E. 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve the Agenda as amended.  Seconded by Trustee 
Jackson. 
 
VOICE VOTE:   Motion carried  7-0 
 
9. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Supervisor Styka reviewed the consent agenda. 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to adopt the Consent Agenda as presented. Seconded by Clerk 
Dreyfus. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Dreyfus, 
   Trustees Sundland, Jackson, Opsommer, Wisinski 
 

 NAYS: 
 

Motion carried  7-0   
A. Communications 

 
Treasurer Deschaine moved that the communications be received and placed on file and any 
communications not already assigned for disposition be referred to the Township Manager or 
Supervisor for follow-up.  Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Dreyfus, 
   Trustees Sundland, Jackson, Opsommer, Wisinski 
 

 NAYS: 
 

Motion carried  7-0   
 

B. Approval of Minutes – September 3, 2019 Regular Meeting   
 

Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting of 
September 3, 2019 as submitted. Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Dreyfus, 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *9/18/19 DRAFT* 

 Page 4   
 

   Trustees Sundland, Jackson, Opsommer, Wisinski 
 

 NAYS: 
 

Motion carried  7-0  
 
C. Bills 

 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve that the Township Board approve the Manager’s Bills 
as follows, seconded by Clerk Dreyfus: 
 
  Common Cash       $            295,002.96        
  Public Works       $            873,838.94 
  Trust & Agency      $        5,955,826,66 
      Total Checks   $        7,122,668.56 
  Credit Card Transactions     $                  5,491.23 
  Aug 29 to Sept 11    
      Total Purchases  $                    7,128,159.79 
  ACH Payments      $            909,139.16  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Dreyfus, 
   Trustees Sundland, Jackson, Opsommer, Wisinski 
 

NAYS: 
 
Motion carried  7-0 
  

10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY – NONE  
 
11. HEARINGS 

 
A. 2360 Jolly Road Brownfield Plan 

 
Principal Planner introduced the proposed brownfield plan for 2360 Jolly Road and outlined the 
review done by the Meridian Township Brownfield Redevelopment Authority. 
 
Dave Van Haaren, Economic Development Director, TriTerra, 1375 S. Washington Ave., Ste. 300, 
Lansing; provided an overview of the proposed brownfield plan and details of the proposed project. 
He explained the plan’s 12 year duration starting in 2021, eligible activities, use of local tax capture.  
 
Supervisor Styka called the public hearing to order at 6:52 pm. 
 
Supervisor Styka closed the public hearing at 6:53 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *9/18/19 DRAFT* 

 Page 5   
 

12. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Rezoning #19060 (Bennett Road Holding, LLC) 
 
Manager Walsh presented the history of the surrounding properties and provided results of efforts 
for a conditional agreement between the developer and the surrounding neighborhoods.  
 
Trustee Jackson moved to refer Rezoning #19060 to the Planning Commission for a new 
public hearing and recommendation. Seconded by Trustee Sundland. 
 
Board discussion: emergency vehicle access to pathway, pathway maintenance, use as RR zoning 
would require connections, density should be controlled rather than matched to existing zoning, 
50% open space needed with PUD, existing PUD’s including pathways in open space, tax payer costs 
in maintaining pathway, pathway could be maintained and preserved by future homeowners 
association like other PUDs, Board will have a separate opportunity to review after Planning 
Commission recommendation, belief that density can reduce millages, land donation and pathway 
impact on current adjacent land preserve, proposed project would match master plan, belief that 
most citizen concerns were met, 5 letters just received are opposed to agreement, land could be 
deed restricted, positives of dispersing open space, possible future Professional/Office zoning 
conditions, Board member comments can guide Planning Commission, review process will refine 
details. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Opsommer, Wisinski, Sundland, Jackson,  
   Clerk Dreyfus, Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Deschaine 
 

NAYS:  
 

Motion carried  7-0 
 

Supervisor Styka moved to recess for 10 minutes at 7:47 pm. 
 
Supervisor Styka moved the meeting back from recess at 8:00 pm. 
 

B. Amendment to Chapter 66 Tax Exemption – PILOT Final Adoption 
 
Trustee Jackson moved to approve the resolution for the final adoption of the amendment to 
Chapter 66, Article II to allow for a tax exemption and Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) for 
persons and families of low to moderate income. Seconded by Trustee Opsommer. 
 
Board discussion: proposed change would open ordinance up to all low/moderate income persons, 
would support proposed Woodward Way development, amendment would meet current needs 
caused by poverty rate. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Wisinski, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland,  
   Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka 
 

NAYS: Clerk Dreyfus 
     

Motion carried  6-1 (Clerk Dreyfus) 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *9/18/19 DRAFT* 

 Page 6   
 

C. Special Use Permit #19121 Woodward Way 
 

Trustee Opsommer moved to adopt the resolution approving Special Use Permit #19121 
with conditions for the size of the Woodward Way housing project. Seconded by Treasurer 
Deschaine. 
 
Board discussion: standard Special Use Permit that is required, recommended by Planning 
Commission  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Sundland, 
   Opsommer, Wisinski, Jackson 
 

NAYS: Clerk Dreyfus 
     

Motion carried  6-1 (Clerk Dreyfus) 
 

D. Woodward Way PILOT 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve the resolution to grant tax-exempt status with 
Payment in Lieu of Taxes for the housing project known as Woodward Way and to authorize 
the Township Manager to sign the Municipal Services Agreement with Woodward Way 
Limited Dividend Housing Association Limited Partnership. The PILOT shall be effective at 
the time of publication of the amendment to Chapter 66 of the Code of Ordinances. Seconded 
by Trustee Jackson. 
 
Board discussion: PILOT will help allow use of decrepit property to meet a Township need, details 
of Municipal Services Agreement in capturing funds, support for original zoning on current Future 
Land Use Map for affordable homeownership opportunities, belief that developer can afford to pay 
their fair share of property taxes – PILOT not required for development, property ideal for young 
family home ownership, apartments are also for low-income wage earners – residents earning 50 – 
80 % of area income, belief that low-income housing will encourage diversity as a public good, 
property’s proximity to grocery and transportation services, walkability. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Sundland, Wisinski, Opsommer, 
   Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka 
 

NAYS: Clerk Dreyfus 
     

Motion carried  6-1 (Clerk Dreyfus 
 

E. Tentative Preliminary Plat #19012 (Giguere Homes) – POSTPONED TO FUTURE MEETING 
 

F. Amend Section 70-28 (c7) Cable Ordinance Franchise Fees 
 
Trustee Wisinski moved to approve the Township Manager’s recommendation, as presented, 
to amend Section 70-28(c7) of the 2003 Cable Television Ordinance eliminating the 
requirement that 80% of franchise fees be allocated to the Cable TV Fund. Seconded by 
Trustee Jackson. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *9/18/19 DRAFT* 

 Page 7   
 

Board discussion: logical to use funding source in General Fund, consultation of Communications 
Department staff, continuation of primary services, importance of public television in government, 
fees can still be used on communications but won’t be tied to it. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski, Jackson, 
   Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Dreyfus 
 

NAYS:  
     

Motion carried  7-0 
 
 
G. 2020 Township Budget 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved that the Township Board approve the 2020 Recommended 
Budget Resolution. Seconded by Trustee Wisinski. 
 
Board discussion: extensive previous discussions, will help achieve economic development, 
additional funding for solar array and environmental efforts, use of Environmental Commission in 
utilizing additional funding, continuation of Climate Sustainability Plan goals, addition of right-of-
way focused staff member. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Treasurer Deschaine, Clerk Dreyfus, Supervisor Styka, 
   Trustees Wisinski, Opsommer, Sundland, Jackson 
 

NAYS:  
     

Motion carried  7-0 
 

H. 2019 Local Road Program 
 
Trustee Opsommer moved to authorize the Deputy Township Manager to reaffirm our 
commitment to the Towner Road and Lake Lansing/Hagadorn Road project and proceed 
with the 2019 cul-de-sac paving work as outlined in the memorandum. Seconded by Trustee 
Wisinski. 
 
Board discussion: current and future road programs through 2019, use of extra funds to re-pave 
five additional cul-de-sacs, Ingham County major projects, future of Towner Road construction, 
Land Preservation Advisory Board discussion on road around Foster-Davis Preserve, selection 
process for cul-de-sacs, inventory of current cul-de-sacs. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Clerk Dreyfus, Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Deschaine, 
   Trustees Opsommer, Jackson, Sundland, Wisinski 
 

NAYS:  
     

Motion carried  7-0 
 
 

I. FCC Franchise Fee Case - AGENDA ITEM ADDED DURING MEETING 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *9/18/19 DRAFT* 

 Page 8   
 

 
Supervisor Styka explained the current appeal of the FCC’s August 2 in-kind report and order. 
 
Trustee Opsommer moved that Meridian Township support the national appeal of the FCC 
August 2, 2019 in-kind report and order unilaterally lowering franchise fees in the 
Township and across the country, at the rate of $5,000.  Seconded by Treasurer Deschaine. 
 
Board discussion: class action lawsuit that the Township could participate in, Township share of 
legal fees can range up to $5000, Meridian Township will not be leading litigation effort. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Sundland, Wisinski, Opsommer, 
   Clerk Dreyfus, Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka 
 

NAYS:  
     

Motion carried  7-0 
 
13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

A. Okemos Road Bridge Replacement 
 
Deputy Manager/Directory Perry explained the proposed Okemos Road Bridge replacement and 
the alternate choices. He noted the final “preferred alternative” mixed elements of initial proposed 
alternates that was within the budget, and provided greenspace; a sidewalk; center turn lane; and a 
potential pathway under the bridge. 
 
Board discussion: engineering elements to limit traffic stacking, current boulevard should be 
preserved – need for green infrastructure in streetscapes, small chance of traffic stacking while 
turning into parks, alternative four negates need for land acquisition, timeliness of decision with 
Downtown Okemos Project, current Ingham County Road Commission budget of $6 million, 
“preferred alternative” will cost $5.7 million, elimination of turning lane in alternative four could 
reduce cost, Okemos Road classification as a Major Collector, bridge repair funding process, County 
needs to provide numbers, should avoid auto-centric view, bridge needs have evolved, special 
meeting may be required with the County, the bridge is within the DDA and can receive 
beautification in the future. 
 
Board consensus to have the Ingham County Road Commission provide more details on 
bridge replacement options and costs. 
 

B.  Newton Road Water Tower Attachment Agreement 

Deputy Manager/Director Perry explained a request from the Lansing Board of Water and Light to 
allow them the use of the Newton Road Water Tower under the condition of providing a safety rail 
around the top of the tower. 
 
Board discussion: why a safety railing on the top of the tower, need for cost estimate. 
 
Board consensus to place this item up for action at the next meeting. 
 

C. 2360 Jolly Road Brownfield Plan 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *9/18/19 DRAFT* 

 Page 9   
 

 
Principal Planner Menser introduced the discussion and the applicant’s present to answer 
questions. 
 
Board discussion: existing adjacent brownfield has 25% pass-through, typical standards don’t 
include 25% pass-through, adjacent warehouse has been demolished, only remaining surrounding 
site on Jolly Road that needs clean-up,  potential for 60 new jobs created, current taxable value is 
$213,000 and will increase to $1 million, $14,000 currently paid in taxes; $71,000 paid after 
project; and $92,000 after brownfield expires, three tenants in proposed building, potential lease 
holders, will be an amenity for the Elevation Apartments development, demolition costs, renovation 
of current storm water system to comply with standards, indoor/outdoor environmental cleanup, 
brownfield funds are only intended to prep for new construction. 
 
Board consensus to place this item up for action at the next meeting. 
 

D. Resolution in Support of the Repeal of the United States Economic Embargo of the Republic of 
Cuba 

 
Trustee Jackson read a proposed resolution that outlines the issues and recognizes the importance 
of repealing the economic embargo on the Republic of Cuba. 
 
Trustee Opsommer moved to suspend the rules and take action. Seconded by Trustee 
Jackson. 
 
VOICE VOTE:   Motion carried  7-0   
 
Trustee Jackson moved to pass the Resolution in Support of the repeal of The United States 
Economic Embargo against the Republic of Cuba the Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 
 
VOICE VOTE:   Motion carried  7-0   
 

E. AirBnb Short Term Rental Regulation 
 
Concerns with growing Airbnb. locations in the Township and investigate a possible zoning 
ordinance to help regulate these short term rentals. 
 
Board discussion: Use Board subcommittee to review the issue and present findings, Board 
subcommittees should not be used, Community Planning and Development should review the issue 
as they are charged with that task, Airbnb is a growing issue that will need regulation. 
 
Board consensus to research a possible zoning ordinance. 
 
14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

Supervisor Styka Opened Public Remarks at 9:26 pm. 
 
Karen Grannemann, 2628 Creekstone Trl., Okemos; spoke in support of Agenda Item 12A and noted 
the efforts of residents and Township staff to reach agreements with the developer. 
 

Supervisor Styka Closed Public Remarks at 9:30 pm. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *9/18/19 DRAFT* 

 Page 10   
 

 
15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS - NONE 
 
16. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Consider a Confidential Written Legal Opinion Regarding an Employment Severance 
Agreement 

 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to take the meeting into closed session for a confidential legal 
opinion pursuant to Section 8(h) of the Michigan Open Meetings Act regarding employment 
severance agreements. Seconded by Trustee Jackson. 
 
Board discussion: Clerk assertion that a complete discussion on a severance package is not 
permissible to take place in a closed session under Open Meetings Act, only the legal opinion can be 
strictly discussed in a closed session, body of the discussion, pros and cons, should take place in 
public meeting. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Opsommer, Jackson, Sundland, Wisinski,  
     Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Deschaine 
 

NAYS: Clerk Dreyfus 
     

Motion carried  6-1 (Clerk Dreyfus) 
 

Supervisor Styka moved the meeting into closed session at 9:35 pm. 

Trustee Opsommer moved to return the meeting to open session. Seconded by Trustee 
Jackson. 

VOICE VOTE:   Motion carried  7-0 

Supervisor Styka moved the meeting back into open session at  9:50pm. 

Trustee Jackson moved that the Township Board approve the Communications Director 
severance agreement. 

ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Sundland, Wisinski, Opsommer, 
   Clerk Dreyfus, Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka 
 

NAYS:  
     

Motion carried  7-0 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *9/18/19 DRAFT* 

 Page 11   
 

17. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Trustee Opsommer moved to adjourn.  Seconded by Trustee Jackson. 
 
VOICE VOTE:    Motion carried  7-0    
 
Supervisor Styka adjourned the meeting at  pm. 
 
 

 
 

___________                 _____________ 
                    RONALD J. STYKA, 

TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR 

 
____________               ________________ 

BRETT DREYFUS, 
TOWNSHIP CLERK 

 
 



 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

9.C 

To:  Board Members 

From:  Miriam Mattison, Finance Director  

Date:  October 1, 2019  

Re:  Board Bills  

 

Charter Township of Meridian 
 Board Meeting 

10/1/2019 

   
MOVED THAT THE TOWNSHIP BOARD APPROVE THE MANAGER'S   
BILLS AS FOLLOWS:   

   

    

COMMON CASH 
                                                              
273,254.05   

   

PUBLIC WORKS 
                                                              
501,447.21   

   

TRUST & AGENCY 
                                                        
13,066,713.79   

   

   

 TOTAL CHECKS:  $              13,841,415.05  

   

   
CREDIT CARD 
TRANSACTIONS   $                         9,725.73  

Sept 12- Sept 25   
       
  TOTAL PURCHASES:  $              13,851,140.78  

   

   
ACH PAYMENTS   $                    479,036.86  

    
 
 
 

 































 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

9. D 

To:  Board Members 

From:  Joyce A. Marx, Human Resources Director 

Date:  September 27, 2019 

Re:  Ratification of New Police Officer Appointment 

 

The Township has presented a conditional offer of employment to a qualified police officer 

candidate. The prospective hiring will bring the staffing level of the police department to 39 sworn 

personnel.  

Dustin Badder graduated from Alpena High School, obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Criminal 

Justice from Grand Valley State University and graduated from the Washtenaw Community College 

Police Academy.   Dustin has worked for the Michigan Department of Corrections for the last two 

years.   

A motion is prepared for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO RATIFY THE APPOINTMENT OF DUSTIN BADDER TO THE POSITION OF 
POLICE OFFICER CONTINGENT UPON SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF THOSE ITEMS 

STIPULATED IN THE CONDITIONAL OFFER OF EMPLOYMENT. 

 
 

 



 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

To:  Township Board  
 
From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 
 
Date:  September 26, 2019 
 
Re: 2360 Jolly Road Brownfield Plan 
 

 

The Township Board held the public hearing on the 2360 Jolly Road brownfield plan at its meeting 

on September 17, 2019.  At the meeting the Board agreed to consider a resolution to approve the 

plan at its next meeting on October 1, 2019. 

 

Township Board Options 
 

The Township Board has the option to approve, approve with modifications, or deny the proposed 

brownfield plan amendment.  A resolution to approve the plan is provided. 

 

• Move to adopt the resolution approving the 2360 Jolly Road Brownfield Plan in an amount 
not to exceed $422,458 over an estimated 12 year period.  

 

Attachment 
1. Resolution to approve. 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\BROWNFIELDS\2019\2360 Jolly Road\2360 Jolly Road brownfield plan.tb2.docx 

12.A 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE 2360 Jolly Road Brownfield Plan 

  

 
 At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 1st day of 
October, 2019, at 6:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: _________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 _________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: _________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 The following resolution was offered by ________________ and supported by _________________. 
  

WHEREAS, 2360 Jolly Road, LLC has requested approval of the 2360 Jolly Road Brownfield 
Plan in order to pursue tax increment financing through the Meridian Township Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority for proposed eligible activities at 2360 Jolly Road; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Meridian Township Brownfield Redevelopment Authority discussed the 
brownfield plan and voted to recommend approval to the Township Board at its meeting on August 
15, 2019; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Township Board held a public hearing on the plan at its meeting on September 
17, 2019 and has reviewed the information forwarded by staff under a cover memorandum dated 
September 12, 2019; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed brownfield plan constitutes a public purpose under the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Financing Act, Public Act 381 of 1996; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed plan meets the requirements for a brownfield plan as established in 

Section 13 of Public Act 381 and the property included in the Plan was determined to be a Facility, as 
required by Public Act 381; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed eligible activities are reasonable, will adequately address 
brownfield conditions on the site, and provide protection to public health, safety and the 
environment; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed method of financing the costs of the eligible activities are 
reasonable and necessary to carry out the purposes of Public Act 381; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed brownfield plan is capped at $422,458, of which the projected 
costs of developer eligible activities shall not exceed $379,700 over an estimated 12 year period, 
and the Meridian Township Brownfield Redevelopment Authority capture for administration shall 
be $21,379 and $21,379 for the Local Brownfield Revolving Fund (LBRF).  If the actual costs of 
eligible activities turns out to be lower than the above estimates, developer reimbursement and 
Township BRA capture may be lower; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian supports the intent of 
the brownfield plan to facilitate the redevelopment and restoration of environmental and economic 
viability to the parcel included in the plan. 
 



Resolution to Approve 

2360 Jolly Road Brownfield Plan 

Page 2 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby approves the 2360 Jolly Road Brownfield Plan, subject to the 
following conditions. 
 
1. Approval is in accordance with the brownfield plan prepared by Advanced Redevelopment 

Solutions dated August 4, 2019. 
 

ADOPTED: YEAS: _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
   __________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                            

  NAYS: _________________________________________________________________________________                        
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the Charter 
Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 
and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 1st 
day of October, 2019. 
 
 
       ______________________________   
       Brett Dreyfus 
       Township Clerk 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\BROWNFIELDS\2019\2360 Jolly Road\2360 Jolly Road brownfield plan TB 
resolution.docx 



 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

To:  Township Board 

 

From:  Mark Kieselbach, Director of Community Planning and Development 

 

  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 

 

Date:  September 26, 2019 

 

Re: Tentative Preliminary Plat #19012 (Giguere Homes) 

 

 

The Township Board discussed the Tentative Preliminary Plat for Sanctuary 3 at its meeting on 

September 3, 2019.  The plat was initially on the September 17, 2019 Board agenda but was 

removed so the applicant could prepare a response to concerns from neighbors regarding a tree 

buffer on the north side of the property.  The applicant will be in attendance at the October 1, 2019 

Township Board meeting to address the concerns and share a proposed resolution to add two, 10-

foot wide tree buffer areas to the plat and plant seven spruce trees on Lot 4. 

  

Township Board Options 

 

The Township Board shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny the proposed tentative 

preliminary plat within 90 days of the plat being filed with the Township.  The application was 

deemed complete on July 26, 2019 therefore the Board must take action no later than the October 

15, 2019 regular meeting.  A resolution will be provided at a future meeting. 

 

Attachments 

1. Letter from Enger Surveying and Engineering dated September 25, 2019. 

2. Plat overlay map submitted by the applicant received by the Township on September 20, 2019. 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\PLATS (PLAT)\2019\Plat #19012 (Giguere) Sanctuary 3\Tentative Preliminary 

Plat\Staff Reports\TPP 19012.tb3.docx 

13.A 









 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

To:  Township Board  
 
From:  Mark Kieselbach, Director of Community Planning and Development 
  
Date:  September 27, 2019 
 
Re: Rezoning northeast corner Park Lake Road and Haslett Road 
 
 
The City of East Lansing has received an application to rezone an approximate 2 acre parcel at the 
northeast corner of Park Lake Road and Haslett Road from RA (Residential Agricultural) to B-2 
(Retail Sales Business).  In 2001 the City and the Township entered into an Urban Cooperation 
Agreement which included the subject parcel.  The Agreement states the City cannot rezone a 
parcel without written approval of the Township to district classifications other than RA, R-1, R-2, 
R-3, RM-8 or B-4.  The City and the Township in 2016 agreed to amend the Urban Cooperation 
Agreement to allow for a rezoning of a portion of the property to B-2 for a Costco retail store and 
appurtenant uses.  The subject parcel was not part of the Costco development and not included in 
the amended Agreement.  The applicant has indicated there is no current proposed development.  
They would like the B-2 zoning designation in order to market and promote the parcel.   
 
The Township Board will need to determine if it is in favor of amending the Urban Cooperation 
Agreement. 
 
Attachments 
1. Rezoning Application 
2. 2001 Urban Cooperation Agreement pages 1-3 
3. Exhibit A (Map) 
4. East Lansing Zoning Map 
5. East Lansing Aerial 
6. Township Zoning Map 
7. Costco Concept Plan 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\108 agreements\rezoning 2019\rezoning northeast corner Park Lake Road and 
Haslett Road.tb1.doc 
 
 
 
 

 

13.B 



CITY OF EAST LANSING 
REZONING APPLICATION 

RECEIVED 
MAY 2 5 2018 

PLANNING. BUILDING & DEVELOPMENT 
CITY OF EAST LANSING 

The undersigned hereby respectfully request(s) that the following described pa o an ymg wit 1111 the 
City of East Lansing be rezoned: 

from the existing: ·RA 'fc e 5 t ie,vvf ltd District to the proposed: (& 'y District 

Legal Description of the Property to be Rezoned (attach separate sheet if necessary): 5&1!:J' .4-tfA-t:..-tf ff.J 
fl;~ - 0 •· 3 [1 - I ~1> ·f!-/,e; w tf5r 2.., Ac.,,tz_e-.) &F ftre e&-Z..,D&SC- A 7 L 01vi Ar~ 1/i 
P65T' '1H S .. '3Lfb f ·r, fl-+- IN i3&11 Pr ·10 6 L(/V€ r1f Pfr!ft-lA:ld" i2rJA-j) 

r I 
'11-) 1V :Jlfb f-ri -rH- 0 lkt:o~ 1/q l-1/JG 1b ~a, S'ec 8 ·-rtfNtf.lttl. 

Also Known As (Street Address): /v /f::5 (JIJlllJ6:L of /-/(-JSLcr( Y-1'/r/(J:. !...irJ:73' 

Parcel ID No(s) : 3 2 -- 20 .. - 0 :Z - tJ<g _,,. l/ l-h ·-00 i Parcel Size: ~ A-t..fU:J 

Reason(s) for Requested Rezoning - Please attach a separate sheet indicating reason(s). 

Site Plan Application Also Submitted: No Yes, date: ______________ , 

I (we) hereby grant pennission for members of the East Lansing City Council, its Planning Commission, its 
staff, and its consultants the right to enter onto the property described in this application in my ( our) absence for 
the purpose of gathering infonnation, includ· t not limited to the taking and use of photographs. 

Please check one: Yes No 

Respectfully submitted by: 

.k.JJ I t-o tt/1 m ~ C--i A-L-
Name of Property 8wner/Applicant 

2- '-ff:;, G, -5 A-§ IN fr?U 5 T]1..l::'c1 
Mailing Address 

Name of Property Owner/Applicant 

f [}, ;&ox /3oD/b 
Mailing Address (do not complete if same) 

~A- ~r .l,4rv 51 /V~_ /VJ/ lj@Y ~? e:: ti :5 ;t:: 1 :fi , r ;;7 n -:4-ao fk=bl!'; /JJ/ '18(; 3 
Gty S~ ' ~ City Stat Zip 

_f I IJ- 'Z..f; I~ 5<3 oo ti'\ 
Phone Fax ~ 

. Jt ;t. 0 rW;. @_, Pl to/# Pier Ct J,. lo i11 
E-Mail Address 

rlt 1£ 0 f£1 e /f:boeJ rl 
Conta~t Name (P~in_;J __/ 

/Jlldl~' 
SignatGd 

Phone Fax 

E-Mail Address 

ltF-30-/'7 
Contact Name (Print) 

Date Signature 

Please Note: All legal owners of the above described parcel(s) must sign the Application 

City of East Lansing 
Planning, Building, and Development 

410 Abbot Road 
East Lansing, MI 48823 

Cell 

Date 

Rev. 01-2017 



Introduced: 
Public Hearing: 
Adopted: 
Effective: 

ORDINANCE NO. 1431 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING USE DISTRICT 
MAP OF CHAPTER 50 -- ZONING -- OF THE CODE OF THE 

CITY OF EAST LANSING 

THE CITY OF EAST LANSING ORDAINS: 

The Zoning Use District Map is hereby amended to rezone the following described area 
from RA, Residential Agricultural to B-2, Retail Sales Business. The property is 2 acres in 
size. 

Tax Parcel No.: 33-20-02-08-426-001 

M-8-36-1-3 THE WEST 2 ACRES OF PARCEL DESC AS COM ATE¼ POST TH S 346 FT, 
TH W 1365 FT TO E LINE OF PARK LAKE ROAD, TH N 346 FT, TH E ALONG ¼ LINE 
TO BEG SEC 8 T4NR1 W. 

More commonly known as vacant land at the northeast corner of Haslett and Park Lake Roads, 
East Lansing, Michigan 48823. 

By _____________ _ By ______________ _ 
Mark S. Meadows, Mayor Jennifer Shuster, City Clerk 



URBAN COOPERATION AGREEIVIENT 
BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF EAST LA.NSING 
AND 

MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
INGHAM COUNTY, lVIlCHIGAN 

t ;:c c1 t .~o ,1 :it. EO 
t:l~/i'.? ,'-.r~ :~~: ~'i'. Of Sr'/liE 

uifiC'.: Or T!!E CP.[AT SEAL 

This Urban Cooperation Agreement ("Agreement") is made as of the 1 sr day of November, 
2001, by and between the City of East Lansing, a Michigan home rule city, with its principal offices 
located at 410 Abbott Road, East Lansing, Michigan 48823 (the "City") and Meridian Charter 
Township, a Michigan charter township, with its principal offices located at 5l51 Marsh Road, 
Okemos, Michigan 48864 (the "Township") . 

Recitals 

vVHEREAS, on.August 24, 2001, a petition for annexation was filed with the Ingham County 
Clerk seeking annexation pursuant to Section 34(5) of the Charter Township Act, of an area of the 
Towns-hip .in Sections 8 and 9 containing 66.48 acres, the map and legal description of which is 
actached heretc an Exhibit A; and ff'fl"':)~ · · 

\,\11-JER:.SAS, on September 5, 2001, Ingham County Clerk Mike Bryanton, acting pursuar;.{ 
to ·McL 42.34(6) , certified the petition to be valid and ordered a refertndL:.m on the questiLm of 
~rnnexation ttJ be held on November 6, 200 l; and · 

WHEREAS, subsection 34(4) of the Chaner Township Act, MCL 42.34(4), provides that, 
where a petition for annexation is filed pursuant to subsection 34(5) and no qualified electors reside 
in the teni.tory proposed to be annexed to the city other than the one or more persons petitioning, and 
.the area is contiguous to the city, annexation may be accomplished by a majority vote of the City 
Council of the City of East Lansing and the approval by the resolution of the Board of Trnstees· of 
the Charter Township of Meridian; and 

. WHEREAs;· the afoi~~aid patc:e] is .adJ~certt and ~~~tiguous tci. the._city of East Lansing ~1d 
no persons reside in said area other than the person signing the annexation petition; and 

'NHEREAS, the City and the Towm:hjp wish to share, manage, and contrnl growth within 
the annexed area, to assure the availability of r.mnicipal services to the area, to avoid duplic<11ion cf 
municipal services, to preserve the environment and protect the public health, safety, and welfare, . 
to minimize adverse effects on adjacent residential uses, to preserve open space and wet1ands, to 
protect and enhance property values, tax base, and the general economic well bting of the City and 
the Township, to preserve and to enhance regional cooperation between the City and the Town.ship. 
to fmther the common needs and goals of the paities , and to otherwise preserve and enhance the 
general welfai·e of the City and the To,lmship. 



Terms and Conditions 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained 
herein, the City and the Township agree as follows: 

1. Pur:pose. This Agreement is intended to jointly and cooperatively manage the 
annexation and future growth and development of the land described in Exhibit A, to assure the 
availability of municipal utility services to the described property, to provide a cooperative 
agreement for the rendering of municipal services to the property, to enhance the regional tax base 
while preserving adjacent property values, and to provide for regional tax sharing. 

2. . Authoritv. This Agreement is made and entered into pursuant to the provisions of 
the Urban Cooperation Act of 1967, as amended, particularly by 1995 PA108, MCL 124.501, et seq 
(the "Act"), as well as the general authority of each of the parties to provide for .their common 
welfare under the statutes authorizing their orgariizc!-tion and existence, particularly the Michigan 
Home Rule Cities Act, the Michigan Charter Township Act, and the Charter of the City of East 
Lansing. · 

3. Annexation of Territory. Concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, the City 
and the Township have adopted joint resolutions annexing the area described in Exhibit A to the city 
of East Lansing pursuant to subsection 34(4) of the Charter Township Act. The parties agree that 
said resolutions shall be filed with the Michigan Secretary of State Office of Great Seal and that the 
annexation accomplished by said resolution shall become effective on January 1, 2002. 

4. Police, Fire. and Emer~ency Rescue Services. The City and the Township shall 
jointly provide police, fire, and emergency rescue services to the annexed area pursuant to police and 
fire mutual aid agreements currently in effect between the parties, or as hereafter amended. The City 
shall be the designated first responder for police, fire, and emergency rescue services in the area. 

5. Public Utilities. The City shall be primarily responsible for the distribution of 
potable water, sanitary sewage treatment and collection, and storm sewer drainage facilities wi~ 
the annexed area. The Township shall make available to the City its water and sanitary sewage 
transmission mains to serve the annexed area where such facilities are the most proximate and 
efficient means of providing municipal utility services, provided the City shall ·reimburse the 
Township for its use of township transmission mains and facilities based upon percentages of flow 
in the same manner as provided in those existing agreements between the City and the Township 

. providing for the joint use of utility transmission facilities . The Township agrees to cooperate with 
the City to obtain any necessary easements or rights-of-way for utility extensions to the area. 

6. Utility Rates. Utility rates, connection charges, tap-in fees, capacity charges, and 
capital charges to customers within the annexed area shall be charged by the City in the same manner 
as provided by ordinance or resolution for other City customers. 

7. Zanin~ and Land Use Approvals. During the term of this Agreement, the City shall: 

2 



a. Not, without the Township's prior written approval, grant land use approvals 
for any uses permitted by right or by special use permit other than those 
permitted in the RA, R-1, R-2, R-3 or RM-8 residential districts, or the B-4 
restricted office business district of the East Lansing zoning ordinance, being 
Chapter 55 of the East Lansing City Code, except that B-4 uses shall not 
exceed twenty percent (20%) of the uses permitted in the annexed area. 

b. Not, without the Township's prior written approval, zone or rezone said 
territory to any district classifications other than RA, R-1, R-2, R-3 or RM-8 
residential districts, or the B-4 restricted office business district as described 
in the East Lansing zoning ordinance, being Chapter 55 of the East Lansing 
City Code, except that B-4 use district classification shall not exceed twenty 
percent (20%) of the zoning classification assigned to the annexed area. 

c. Provide the Township Manager written notice within 30 days of receipt of 
filing of any application for rezoning, a special use permit, planned unit 
development, site plan approval, planned unit development, or any other 
discretionary land use decision within the annexed area. 

8. Revenue Sharing. Revenue sharing from the annexed property during the term of this 

Agreement shall be shared between the City and the Township as follows: 

a. Tax-Based Sharin2:. 

1. For tax year 2002, the City shall collect the ad valorem real and 
personal property taxes, payments in lieu of taxes, and any other taxes 
from the parcels annexed to the City at the rates levied by the 
Township, and the City shall remit from such collections to the 
Township an amount equal to five (5) mills ($5 per $1,000 of taxable 
value) of the taxes levied and collected against real and personal 
property within the annexed area. The City shall, on March 1, 2003, 
or the next City business day thereafter, forward to the Township its 
agreed portion of the taxes levied and collected from real or personal 
property within the annexed area. Any delinquent 2002 taxes which 
are paid on or after March 1, 2003, shall be remitted as collected and 
received, together with the Township's pro rata share of penalties and 
interest thereon. If, subsequent. to the payment of such taxes, an 
owner of property in the annexed area successfully challenges all or 
a portion of such taxes and the City is required to refund all or a 
portion of such taxes to the property owner, upon notice from the 
City, the Township shall promptly repay the City the Township's pro 
rata share of any such property tax refund, together with the 
Township's share of any interest due on the tax refund. 

3 



tr
j 

:><
: 
~
 

H
 to
 

H
 

8 :i,
, 

·:\
_

:,• 
-
-
·-

·
····

-·
-·• 

M
A

P
 O

F
 P

A
R

C
E

L
 T

O
 B

E
 A

N
N

E
X

E
D

 

-~-·-
'. 

\ 
..

 
·

··
i .. ·
. 

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 E
A

S
TI

 L
A

M
S

!~
:~

-: 

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S
 

I 
,,/ , .

. ·,
, 

_ 
M

er
id

ia
n 

T
ow

ns
hi

p,
 l

n
g

h
n

m
 C

o
u

n
ly

 

0 Cl:
'. w
 
~
 s ~I 

//
//

2
~

1
/1

//
~

-

LA
l<

E 
L

A
N

S
IN

G
 R

D
. 

,,~
~

;~
/ 

.
~

 
~ 

\C
R

~
~

 

-
.
.
.
,
,
,
,

-.
•
 ! 

. 

.·-
-•-

-,,
. 

("
"'

\ .. _
 

·---
~·-'-

.,,
 

-
--

--

;1
½

~~
,;:

:0
u

·-~ 
-

~--
/~

/
 ~

0
 

~
~
~

. 
_

,_
,~

: 
%

0 
. 

~ E 
i/

4
 C

O
R

. _
S

E
C

.8
 

I 
;{ j

 J
~,

 1 

/_l
.
L

L
A

-
-
-
;
~

:~
=

-
-
-
-
~

~
~

_
j
_

 
, 

-
-
-
-
-
-
'-

''\~:·
. ·
--

-'
-~

 I 
H

A
S

L
E

T
T

 R
D

. 

:,· 
I : 

---
···
-
-
-
•
-
-
'
-
-
-
-
-
-
~

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
:
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
~

-
-
-
_

_
_

:
_

-
-
­

.-~ .
.

..
 

: ..
 ·,.:.

: 
,1

.
, .. •,•

. 

,
•:

 
·_

 ..
. 



:21 ·1 I 

IP 

R3 
RMS 
RM14 
RM22 

ITV OF EAST LANSIN 

ZONING MAP 

LAl<E LANSl~!G RD 

. 5945 

RMB 

... , 
N 

Slngl Famlly nd Two FMIRY R8Skllntll 
Multlple-Famlly Resldentlal District: 
Low Denetty Multfple-Famfly Rmldentl 
Medium Density ~ultfple-famRy _Resider 

"' ,,, 

.. 
u1,c:-1 m on 

DJ. 
82 
B3 
M ...... 

B4 

I \ 

Ul11Qjl DUSI ~ 

Retall Sa Business Dlsb1ct 
City Center Commerdal Dlatrkt 
Restrtcted Offlce Busl Dlstrtd: ,., ______ ..._ _ .. ._.__,, ,._, __ n .__. ___ ~ 



ITY OF EAST LANSIN 

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 



Ha
sle

tt R
d

Sag
ina

wHw
y

Park Lake Rd

BarnsburyRd

EastEndDr

Bent Tree Dr

Westminster Way

Ba
rn

sb
ur

y R
d

RA
RR

RA
A

RA

C-2

±



,-
-

• 

. 
f 

. 
_

;f
'" 

~
 I -

::·i~
:
:
:
:

~.~
~:c_-

:::-
~~

\( 
/

✓ 
I 

-
' 

' 
\'

,
•.

•1
' 
•
.
 ·y

 

I 
'\

 
', 

f,::
.1 

/
' 

J 
') 

''('
 

• 
•~

 
I 

-
-
~

-
-

. :
::::

?~
 

/ ...
...... 

,~
 

\ ,
.,.

 
/ 

I 
• 

• 

1//,
 I I 

1 111
1/ 

C
'O

S
T

C
O

 W
H

O
L

E
S

A
'L

E
 

E
A

S
T

 
L

A
N

S
IN

G
, 

M
IC

H
IG

A
N

 

r-
·-·.

·.·,
 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 D
A

T
A

 
t}

' 
-~~

~::
=.r

:: "'
•::

 i 
I 

-
~

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
~

 C
LI

E
N

T
: 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 A
D

D
R

E
S

S
: 

C
O

S
T

C
O

 W
H

O
LE

S
A

LE
 

99
9 

LA
K

E
 D

R
IV

E
 

IS
S

A
Q

U
A

H
, W

A
 

96
0

27
 

S
E

C
 O

F 
E

. 
S

A
G

IN
A

W
 H

W
Y

 &
 

P
A

R
K

 L
A

K
E

 R
D

, 
E

. 
LA

N
S

IN
G

, 
M

l 
I 

. 
I 

I 
I 

/<
.-~

--' 
/ 

·, 

. 
/ 

..-·
·-

·./ 
. 

·, 
/ 

I 
·, 

/ 

\ 
. 

.,
._

,/ 

··-
. j 

....
.. ,

. 
..,

/ 

'-
/ 

··-
.....

. · 
II 

(>
 

r,,,
,P

:::
:~

:-
~ 

,.
j 

/ 
/ 

1;
 

V
IC

IN
IT

Y
 M

A
P

 

l,,,
....

.._
 V

:!j
9M

-•1
1 
~
 

•
-

•
O

H
~ 

S
IT

E
 D

A
T

A
: 

1 
T

O
T

A
L

 S
IT

E
 A

R
E

A
: 

IN
C

LU
D

E
S

: 

C
O

S
T

C
O

 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
E

D
 S

IT
E

 A
R

E
A

: 
U

N
D

E
V

E
LO

P
E

D
 S

IT
E

 A
R

E
A

: 
O

U
T

L
O

T
 1

 A
R

E
A

: 
O

U
T

L
O

T
 2

 A
R

E
A

: 
D

U
T

L
O

T
 3

 A
R

E
A

: 
R

.O
.W

, D
E

D
IC

A
T

IO
N

: 

D
E

T
E

N
T

IO
N

 P
O

N
D

 A
R

E
A

: 

JU
R

IS
D

IC
T

IO
N

: 

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
S

: 

N
O

R
T

H
W

E
S

T
 

N
O

R
T

H
E

A
S

T
 

S
O

U
T

H
W

E
S

T
 

S
O

U
T

H
E

A
S

T
 

N
O

R
T

H
 

E
A

S
T

 
S

O
U

T
H

 
W

E
S

T
 

W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
-6

0-,
-
-
-

83
'-6

" 
23

9'
-6

" 
40

4'
-6

" 

F
U

E
L

 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 
~
 

10
3'

-1
0"

 
64

'-6
" 

10
0'

-0
" 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 D
A

T
A

: 

64
.4

7 
A

C
R

E
S

 (
2,

80
8,

3
7

0
±

 S
F

) 

20
.0

5 
A

C
R

E
S

 
(8

73
,5

43
 S

F
) 

38
.2

1 
A

C
R

E
S

 (
1,

66
4,

14
9 

S
F

) 
1.

93
 A

C
R

E
S

 
(8

4,
21

0 
S

F
) 

1
.f

il
 A

C
R

E
S

 
(7

2,
77

4 
S

F
) 

1
.8

6
A

C
R

E
S

 
(8

1,
16

4 
S

F
) 

0.
 7

5 
A

C
R

E
S

 
(3

2,
53

0 
S

F
) 

3.
82

 A
C

R
E

S
 

(1
66

,5
63

 S
F

) 

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 E

A
S

T
 L

A
N

S
IN

G
, 

M
l 

B
-2

 
W

A
R

E
H

O
U

S
E

 
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 
-5

5 _
_

_
_

 _ 

60
' 

23
5'

 
40

0'
 

F
U

E
L 

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 
~
 

95
' 

6
0'

 
95

' 
©

 
0 

SO
' 

10
0'

 
,..

 
H

--
,'

--
1 

I 
T

O
T

A
L

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 F
O

O
T

P
R

IN
T

 A
R

E
A

: 
1

5
6

,1
7

0
S

F
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

IN
C

LU
D

E
S

: 

W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
 M

A
IN

 L
E

V
E

L 
E

N
C

LO
S

E
D

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

 

F
IR

E
 D

E
P

T
 R

O
O

M
/ M

A
C

H
IN

E
 R

O
O

M
 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
A

T
A

: 

0 
1

0
' W

ID
E

 S
T

A
LL

S
 

0 
A

C
C

E
S

S
IB

L
E

 S
T

A
LL

S
 

T
O

T
A

L
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
: 

N
U

M
B

E
R

 O
F

 S
T

A
LL

S
 P

E
R

 1
0

0
0

 S
F

 
O

F
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

R
E

A
: 

N
O

T
E

S
: 

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

 T
O

 B
E

 F
IE

LD
 V

E
R

IF
IE

D
. 

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L

 S
N

O
W

 
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 P
LA

N
 

eo
s,

cu
 

1
5

0
,1

2
9

S
F

-
-
E

S
IU

E
 

4,
00

2 
S

F
 

E
. L

A
N

S
IN

G
, 

M
l 

2
,0

39
 S

F
 

7
3

3
 S

T
A

LL
S

 
16

 S
T

A
LL

S
 

75
1 

S
T

A
LL

S
 

4.
81

 S
T

A
LL

S
 

13
-0

02
0-

01
 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 1

3,
 2

01
6 

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 O

V
E

R
A

L
L

 P
L

A
N

 
D

0
1

1
-1

8
 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 

1
3

, 
2

0
1

6
 

..
 -
u

, .
.. -

....
 

_
_

 .. 
_ 



 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

To:  Township Board  
 
From:  Mark Kieselbach, Director of Community Planning and Development 
  
Date:  September 27, 2019 
 
Re: Ordinance prohibiting the sale of dogs and cats at pet stores 
 
 
Trustee Opsommer has asked the Township Board to consider amending the Code of Ordinances 
to prohibit the sale of dogs and cats at a pet store.  A model ordinance and a business fact sheet 
from The Humane Society is attached for the Board’s review.  The intent of having an ordinance 
that would prohibit pet stores from selling dogs and cats is to decrease the demand for puppies 
and kittens bred in puppy and kitten mills and decrease the burden that pet store puppies and 
kittens that end up in animal shelters.   
 
The ordinance would not allow a pet store to sell, deliver, offer for sale, barter, auction, give away 
or otherwise transfer or dispose of dogs and cats.  An exception to the ordinance would allow a pet 
store to collaborate with animal care facilities or animal rescue organizations to offer space for the 
adoption of dogs and cats.  If the Board decides to move ahead with an ordinance staff will prepare 
a draft for the Board’s consideration. 
 
Attachments 
1. Model ordinance 
2. The Humane Society Business Fact Sheet 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\ORDINANCES\prohibiting the sale of cats & dogs at pet stores\prohibiting the sale 
of dogs and cats at pet stores.tb1.doc 
 
 
 
 

 

13.C 



WHEREAS, Most puppies and kittens sold in pet stores come from large-scale, commercial breeding facilities 
where the health and welfare of the animals is disregarded in order to maximize profits ("puppy mills" and "kitten 
mills," respectively). According to The Humane Society of the United States, an estimated 10,000 puppy mills 
produce more than 2 million puppies per year in the United States. 

WHEREAS, The documented abuses endemic to puppy and kitten mills include over-breeding; inbreeding; 
minimal veterinary care; lack of adequate food, water and shelter; lack of socialization, exercise and enrichment; 
lack of sanitation. 

WHEREAS, Pet store puppies are often sick and have behavioral problems because of the substandard conditions 
they were likely born into; they were taken from their mothers at a very young age; they were transported in 
trucks filled with other young puppies; they were placed in a pet store cage with or near other puppies who are 
often sick. 

WHEREAS, Pet stores often mislead consumers as to where the puppies and kittens in the stores came from and 
make false health and behavior guarantees. Many consumers end up paying hundreds or thousands of dollars in 
veterinary bills and suffer the heartbreak of having their new pet suffer, and in some cases pass away. 

WHEREAS, According to the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, pet store puppies pose a health 
risk to consumers, as over one hundred Americans have contracted an antibiotic-resistant Campylobacter 
infection from contact with pet store puppies. 

WHEREAS, Current federal and state regulations do not adequately address the animal welfare and consumer 
protection problems that the sale of puppy and kitten mill dogs and cats in pet stores pose. Federal oversight of the 
commercial breeding industry is severely lacking. 

WHEREAS, Prohibiting pet stores from selling dogs and cats is likely to decrease the demand for puppies and 
kittens bred in puppy and kitten mills and decrease the burden that pet store puppies and kittens that end up in 
animal shelters place on local agencies and taxpayers. 

WHEREAS, The huge majority of pet stores, both large chains and small, family-owned shops, are already in 
compliance with the proposed [legislation/ordinance] as they already do not sell dogs and cats but rather profit 
from selling products, offering services, and in some cases, collaborating with local animal shelters and rescues to 
host adoption events. 

WHEREAS, This [legislation/ordinance] will not affect a consumer's ability to obtain a dog or cat of his or her 
choice from an animal rescue, shelter, or breeder who sells directly to the public. 

WHEREAS, The [legislature/council] believes it is in the best interest of[state/city] to adopt reasonable 
regulations to reduce costs to the [state/city] and its residents, protect citizens who may purchase cats or dogs 
from a pet store, help prevent inhumane breeding conditions, promote community awareness of animal welfare, 
and foster a more humane environment in the [City]. 

Section 1. Definitions 

Animal care facility means an animal control center or animal shelter, maintained by or under contract with 

any state, county, or municipality, whose mission and practice is, in whole, or significant part, the rescue and 
placement of animals in permanent homes or rescue organizations. 

Animal rescue organization means any not-for-profit organization which has tax-exempt status under Section 



501(c)(3) of the United States Internal Revenue Code, whose mission and practice is, in whole or in significant 
part, the rescue and placement of animals in permanent homes. This term does not include an entity that is a 
breeder or broker or one that obtains animals from a breeder or broker for profit or compensation. 

Breeder means a person that maintains a dog or cat for the purpose of breeding and selling their offspring. 

Broker means a person that transfers a dog or cat from a breeder for resale by another person. 

Cat means a member of the species of domestic cat, Felis catus. 

Dog means a member of the species of domestic dog, Canis familiaris. 

Offer for sale means to sell, offer for sale or adoption, advertise for the sale of, barter, auction, give away or 
otherwise dispose of a dog or cat. 

Pet store means a retail establishment where dogs or cats are sold, exchanged, bartered or offered for sale as 
pet animals to the general public at retail. Such definition shall not include an animal care facility or animal 
rescue organization, as defined. 

Section 2. Restrictions on the Sale of Animals 

No pet store shall sell, deliver, offer for sale, barter, auction, give away, or otherwise transfer or dispose of cats 
or dogs. Nothing in this section shall prohibit pet stores from collaborating with animal care facilities or animal 

rescue organizations to offer space for such entities to showcase adoptable dogs or cats provided the pet store 
shall not have any ownership interest in the animals offered for adoption and shall not receive a fee for providing 
space for the adoption of any of these animals. 

Section 3. Penalty. 

A pet store that violates this section shall be subject to a civil penalty of$500, and each dog or cat offered for sale 
in violation of this section shall constitute a separate violation. 

Section 4. Severability. 

If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall be declared invalid for 
any reason whatsoever, such decision shall not affect the remaining portions of this Ordinance which shall 
continue in full force and effect, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be 
severable. 

Section 5. Effective Date. 

This ordinance shall become effective 90 days after passage. 



t.~~~I \;;.~J;-tt T HE HUMANE SOCIETY 
~ ' OF TI-l E UNITED STATES 

BUSINESS FACT SHEET 

Stores can thrive by converting from the outdated and socially unacceptable business model that relies on the sale of 
mill puppies to a model that focuses on offering quality products and services, and hosting adoption events. Cries from 
some pet stores that they need to sell puppies to stay in business are baseless, as the huge majority do not do so. 

"I strongly believe that by giving these pet store business owners a different ideology with regards to the industry, 
you are helping these businesses from a profit standpoint, an educational perspective and setting a new precedent of 
a more humane peaceful existence for us all ... that from someone who was in the same business longer than most" -
Anita Bobetich, former owner of Precious Pet Cottage, a puppy-selling pet store, in a letter to Maryland Senators 

INDUSTRY TRENDS 
• According to The American Pet Products Association, Americans spent $69 billion on their pets in 2017, and every 

category, including pet food, products, and services, saw an increase except live animal sales, which they predict will 
continue to decline. 1 

■ Consultancy EV-Parthenon reported in July 2018 that the pet industry has become a "potentially explosive market" as 
Americans increasingly humanize their pets, predisposing them to spend more on fancy food, treats, clothing and 
premium services such as grooming and pet spas, and noted that 78% of people prefer to shop for their pets in brick­
and-mortar stores. The firm also noted that live animals sales will likely slow "as people align pet adoption with their 
social values."2 

• Pet Business' 2018 "Top 25 Pet Retailers in North America" included only one chain that sells puppies, while the rest 
of the pet store companies are thriving by selling quality products and offering in demand services such as grooming, 
boarding and training. 3 

• Entrepreneur magazine included Pet Supplies Plus on its "2018 Fastest-Growing Franchise Ranking" and "Annual 
Franchise 500" lists, noting that the company was the top pet supply franchise. Pet Supplies Plus does not sell 
puppies, but rather focuses on natural pet foods, goods and pet services, and stores often partner with local animal 
shelters and rescues to host adoption events and fundraisers .4 

• Conscientious companies are refusing to do business with pet stores that sell puppies. For example, Honest Kitchen, a 
healthy pet food company with products in nearly 5000 stores across the country, regularly turns down requests 
from stores that want to sell their products but also sell puppies. 5 

SUCCESSFUL PET STORES, IN THEIR OWN WORDS 
• PetSmart: At PetSmart, we never sell dogs or cats. Together with PetSmart Charities, we help save over 1,300 pets 

every day through adoption.6 

• Petco: We encourage anyone looking to add a new pet to their family to consider adopting a homeless animal, rather 
than purchasing one .. . Petco and the Petco Foundation partner with thousands of local animal welfare groups across 
the country and, through in-store adoption events, help find homes for more than 400,000 animals every year. 7 

• Owners of Pet Food Express' 60+ stores, in a letter to CA legislators who passed the first statewide prohibition on the 
sale of puppies in pet stores: We support AB485 because we want to see all pet stores operate responsibly. Not only is 
it the right thing to do, but it's the key to a successful business. 

• Owners of Pets Plus Natural, with stores in NJ and PA, in a letter to NJ legislators: We recommend any pet store that is 
in it for the right reasons to transition away from selling commercially-raised puppies and towards adoption. The 
benefits far outweigh the work it takes to change your business model. 

1 https://www.prnewswire.com/news-releases/americans-spent-695-billion-on-their-pets· last-year·more·than-ever-before300618209.html 
2 https://www.consulting.us/news/538/americans-see-their-pets·as-family-and-are-spending-more-cash-on-them 
' http://www. petbusi ness.com/M a rch-2018/The· Top-25-Pet •Retai lers-in-North-America/ 
4 https://www.prnewswire.com/news-releases/pet-supplies-plus-earns-status-as-one-of-north-americas-fastest-growing-franchises-300608290.html 
5 https://www.thehonestkitchen.com/blog/recognition-for-our-stance-on-puppy-mills/ 
6 https://www.petsmart.com/adoption/people-saving-pets/ca-adoption-landing.html 
7 https://about.petco.com/fact-sheets 



 

 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

To:  Township Board  

 

From:  Mark Kieselbach, Director of Community Planning & Development 

  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 

 

Date:  September 25, 2019 

 

Re: Trash Receptacle Ordinance 

 

 

Planning staff has been asked to provide information on a potential ordinance establishing 

requirements for the placement and retrieval of trash receptacles, for which the Township does 

not have regulations.  Currently, if receptacles or bags are left out by the road after pick-up and the 

Township receives a complaint it is dealt with using the nuisance ordinance (Chapter 46 of the 

Code of Ordinances) and code enforcement process, which includes a site visit by the Code 

Enforcement Officer, contact with the property owner/tenant (if possible), and potentially the 

issuance of a violation notice providing a deadline for the issue to be rectified.  Residents that do 

not comply once notified may face a civil fine or receive an appearance ticket.       

 

Examples of this type of ordinance from other communities can be found in the cities of St. Joseph, 

East Lansing, and the Village of Colon, all of which have regulations establishing the day and time 

that trash receptacles can be placed on the curb and when they must be removed.  The City of St. 

Joseph allows receptacles to be placed at the curb no earlier than 5:00 p.m. the day before pick-up 

and requires retrieval no later than 10:00 a.m. the day after collection.  The City of East Lansing 

allows receptacles to be placed at the curb no earlier than 8:00 p.m. the day before pick-up and 

retrieved no later than 10:00 a.m. the day after collection.  The Village of Colon has similar 

ordinance provisions but instead of specific times the Village allows placement at the curb no 

earlier than 24 hours prior to pick up and requires retrieval of receptacles within 24 hours of pick-

up.     

 

Staff research indicates residential trash pickup in the Township, which is provided by both 

Granger and Waste Management, occurs mostly on Tuesdays and Thursdays.  Both providers 

noted that collection could potentially occur on any day of the week as they offer custom pick-up 

dates for residential and commercial customers.  In addition to trash service, Township residents 

also have access to recycling and yard waste pickup, which depending on the area of the Township 

occurs on Tuesday, Thursday, or Friday. 

 

If the Township Board decides to move ahead with an ordinance staff can provide draft language 

for the next meeting.  Once acceptable ordinance language is identified the Board must first vote to 

approve the ordinance for introduction then for final adoption at the following meeting. 

 

Attachments 

1. Trash receptacle ordinances from the City of St. Joseph, the City of East Lansing, and the Village 

of Colon. 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\ORDINANCES\Trash Receptacles\Trash Receptacle Ordinance.tb1.docx 

13.D 



City of St. Joseph 

Sec. 14-9. - Placement of garbage and rubbish for collection. 

(a) The department of public works shall prepare a schedule providing for collection of rubbish and 

garbage from residential property on a weekly basis. A copy of the collection schedule shall be kept 

in the city clerk's office and shall be available for inspection during the regular business hours of 

that office. The department of public works may also prepare schedules providing for special 

collection of materials, which schedules shall similarly be kept in the city clerk's office. 

(b) Garbage or rubbish containers may be placed at curbside (or alongside the alley if the property 

abuts an alley) for collection purposes only, but not earlier than 5:00 p.m. on the day preceding the 

scheduled collection day, and the containers must be returned to a storage place permitted 

under section 14-5 not later than 10:00 a.m. on the day following the scheduled collection day. 

Garbage or rubbish contained only in a sealed plastic bag may be placed out for collection during 

this period, but under this chapter may not be otherwise stored outside. 

(c) Material set out for collection as part of a special collection program authorized under 

subsection (a) shall similarly be placed at curbside (or alongside the alley if the property abuts an 

alley) for collection purposes only, but not earlier than 5:00 p.m. on the day preceding the 

scheduled collection day, and any remaining containers or uncollected material must be returned to 

a storage place permitted under section 14-5 not later than 10:00 a.m. on the day following the 

scheduled collection day. 

(d) The owner of the premises upon which, or adjacent to which, a violation of this section occurs 

shall be responsible for such violation. In the event of a violation of this section, for the first 

violation in a calendar year the property owner shall receive a written warning, as well as a copy of 

the ordinance from which this section derived. Subsequent violations shall result in a $50.00 fine. In 

all cases, there shall be an additional late charge if the fee is not paid within 30 days of the notice 

date, or in the event an appeal is filed and denied, within 30 days of the mailing of the denial notice. 

The late charge shall be ten percent of the amount due. These fees and charges shall constitute a 

lien on the property. The official records of the city clerk shall constitute notice of the pendency of 

such lien. Notice of the existence of and reason for such a lien shall be mailed to the property 

owner's last known address. In addition to the fine provided in this section, the general penalty and 

additional remedies prescribed in section 1-11 shall apply to any violation of this section. 



City of East Lansing 

Sec. 36-85. - Collection schedules and methods; placement of containers for 

collection. 

The city manager shall establish schedules, conditions, and methods of collecting refuse and 

shall, by appropriate means, provide the citizens of the city with information concerning the 

same; provided, that collection shall not commence before 7:00 a.m., nor be continued after 

6:00 p.m., except where, for the protection of public health the city manager may require 

the extending of the time limit herein fixed; provided, further, that no person shall place 

refuse containers in the public right-of-way for collection by the city before 8:00 p.m. of the 

day preceding the regularly scheduled collection day, or a special collection day requested 

by the occupant and approved by the department of public works, and the occupant(s) shall 

not allow the refuse containers to remain in the public right-of-way past 10:00 a.m. on the 

day following the date the refuse is collected. 

Sec. 36-93. - Penalty; enforcement. 

(a)Except for violations of section 36-84 and section 36-92, a person found responsible for a 

violation of this article shall be responsible for a municipal civil infraction as defined by 

MCL 600.113, punishable by a civil fine of not less than $25.00 for the first offense, $50.00 

for the second offense, or $250.00 for a third or subsequent offense, plus costs, damages, 

expenses, and further orders as provided by section 1-13 of this Code.(b)Cases commenced 

under this article as a municipal civil infraction shall, to the extent applicable, be 

commenced by the issuance of a citation to the alleged violator as in the manner provided 

by MCL 600.8707 and shall contain the information required and be processed under the 

provisions of MCL 600.8709 and MCL 600.8711. Limited duty parking and property 

maintenance officers appointed by the city manager and assigned to enforcement of the 

provisions of this article under the supervision of the chief of police shall be authorized to 

issue and serve appearance tickets with respect to any violation of this article charged as a 

municipal civil infraction. 





 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

13. E 

To:  Board Members 

From:  Ronald J. Styka, Township Supervisor 

Date:  September 27, 2019 

Re:  Public Comment Policies 

 

Township legal counsel has recommended that townships formally adopt their guidelines for public 

comment as a policy of the Board.  Since early in our current terms, we have been asking citizens 

addressing this body to adhere to the guidelines attached to this memorandum. I am proposing that 

these be formally adopted. 

Thank you. 

Attachment: 

1. Draft Public Comment Policies 

 

 
 

 



Public Comment Policies-DRAFT 
 

There are two opportunities for public comment. Citizens who wish to address agenda or 
non-agenda items will have an opportunity at the beginning of the meeting, as well as near 
the end of the meeting. Individuals who wish to address the board must complete a green 
form, located with the agendas near the room entrance, and present the card to the Board's 
secretary prior to the start of the public comment period. At the appropriate time the 
Supervisor will call upon individuals, who have completed a green form, to speak on the 
topics indicated. 

 
Citizens are required to limit comments to three minutes, except when this requirement is 
waived in advance by the Supervisor for good cause. A timekeeper will communicate to the 
individual who is addressing the Board at the conclusion of three minutes. 

 
  The Board highly values public comment and input. However, the Board meeting format is 

designed to facilitate the evening's agenda and, therefore, restricts board members from 
engaging in conversation with speakers or immediately responding to questions. Questions 
and concerns may be addressed by the Board later in the agenda and/or may be assigned for 
follow­ up by the Board or the Township Manager at a later date. 

 
In order to foster the orderly conduct of the Board's business on behalf of the community, 

please refrain from rude or discourteous behavior. Address all comments to the Board, not 

to individual Board members or to others in attendance. 

 
Finally, the meeting is a meeting of the Board of the Township held in public for the purpose 

of conducting the business of the township. It is not a meeting of the public. Please limit 

comments to the issues on the agenda to the greatest extent possible. 

 
 


	10.1.19 Final Agenda UP
	Packet Cover 1 Comm
	Communication for 10-1 Bd MTG UP
	Minutes Cover
	Draft Minutes 9-17-19 Bd Mtg
	9C - Bills 10.01.19 for Board
	9D - Police Ratification-Badder
	12A - 2360 Jolly Road Brownfield Plan (10-1-19 TB mtg)
	2360 Jolly Road brownfield plan.tb2
	2360 Jolly Road brownfield plan TB resolution

	13A -Tentative Preliminary Plat #19012 (10-1-19 TB mtg)
	TPP 19012.tb3
	SANCTUARY III Additional Buffer Areas and Trees
	scanned overlay map

	13B - Haslett-Park Lake Road Rezoning Request (10-1-19 TB)
	rezoning northeast corner Park Lake Road and Haslett Road.tb1
	1  Rezoning application
	2  2001 Urban Cooperation Agreement pages 1-3
	3 Exhibit A (Map)
	4 East Lansing Zoning Map
	5 East Lansing Aerial
	6  Twp zoning map
	7 Costco concept plan

	13C - Ordinance Prohibiting Cat and Dog Sales at Pet Stores (10-1-19 TB)
	prohibiting the sale of dogs and cats at pet stores.tb1
	model ordinance
	humane society fact sheet

	13D - Trash Receptacle Ordinance (10-1-19)
	Trash Receptacle Ordinance.tb1
	St Joseph
	City of East Lansing
	trash bins Village of Colon

	13E - Public Comment Policies

